STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT UPDATE 2019: DATA PROTECTION AND NEIGHBOURHOOD PLANNING

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 The Council's adopted Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) 2016 needs to be updated to take into account recent legislative changes relating to data protection and neighbourhood planning. This report summarises the findings of a recent consultation on proposed amendments to the Council's adopted SCI and the amendments that are now proposed.

2 INTRODUCTION

- 2.1 The preparation of an SCI is a legal requirement, as set out under Section 18 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (2004), as amended. The SCI's role is to outline how local communities, including residents, organisations and businesses and other interested parties, will be involved in plan-making and the consideration of planning applications.
- 2.2 The Council's current SCI was adopted in July 2016 and, with the exception of recent legislative changes, remains up-to-date and does not need significant revision. The SCI needs to be updated to take into account recent legislative changes relating to data protection and neighbourhood planning. Amendments to the wording of the adopted SCI are therefore proposed as a reasonable approach to accommodate this. The adopted SCI retains its flexibility to utilise appropriate techniques which are proportionate to each consultation stage and available capacity and resources. Each consultation stage is normally accompanied by a more detailed plan which sets out how local communities can expect to be informed and engaged with during the relevant consultation period.
- 2.3 The amendments relating to data protection are proposed to be inserted at the end of the Introduction to the Council's adopted SCI and the amendments relating to neighbourhood planning would replace paragraph 2.21 of the Council's adopted SCI.
- 2.4 The proposed amendments to the adopted SCI have been subject to a period of public consultation in line with best practice. Once adopted, all future community involvement will be undertaken in accordance with the amended SCI.

3 PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ADOPTED SCI

3.1 An SCI is pivotal in supporting the plan-making process to ensure appropriate consultation and engagement at each published stage. Two separate amendments are proposed to the adopted SCI to ensure that it effectively supports plan-making at all scales.

Amendment I - General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR)

- 3.2 The purpose of the SCI is to set out how local communities and other interested parties can expect to be involved in the planning process. This Inevitably includes the collection and processing of personal data such as postal and email addresses.
- 3.3 The GDPR came into force on 25 May 2018 updating the data protection requirements for organisations. This proposed amendment to the adopted SCI 2016 highlights the measures that the Council has in place to address the GDPR requirements with regard to the treatment of personal data.

Amendment II - Neighbourhood Planning

- 3.4 Neighbourhood planning was introduced by the Localism Act 2011 to empower communities to positively prepare for their local areas. To date, the Canewdon and Wallasea Neighbourhood Plan Area is the only area that has been designated in the district. The adopted SCI includes references to Neighbourhood Planning; however, it does not provide any detail to guide communities through the process.
- 3.5 The Neighbourhood Planning Act 2017 was enacted on 27 April 2017 and makes amendments to the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, amongst other Acts. In relation to the SCI, the Act requires the Council to include detail on how we will advise and/or assist relevant bodies through the plan-making process, particularly in relation to a proposal or modification proposal.
- 3.6 Appendix A sets out the proposed addendum wording: outlining what Neighbourhood Planning is and the key stages, how the Council will advise/assist relevant bodies throughout the process, and how the Council will consult the public at each of the key stages. The minimum consultation requirements are set out in the Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012.

Summary of Representations to the Consultation

- 3.7 The proposed amendments and additions to the adopted SCI have been subject to a period of public consultation between Thursday, 18 July and Thursday, 29 August 2019 in line with best practice.
- 3.8 Representations were received from statutory consultees as well as from residents within the district. Statutory consultees which made representations included Historic England; Natural England; Highways England; Basildon Borough Council; Chelmsford City Council and Southend-on-Sea Borough Council.
- 3.9 Whilst many of the representations responded to the proposed addendums to the SCI 2016, there were some representations that considered the

consultation to be an opportunity to express concerns and other interests relating to planning policy and control, as well as other Council business.

3.10 The representations received to the consultation have been reviewed and summarised as detailed below:

Data Protection

All representations received indicated support for the proposed amendments.

Neighbourhood Planning

Many of the representations received indicated support for the proposed amendments, highlighting in particular the importance of future consultation, engagements and referendums being well advertised and publicised. Some representations indicated support for more parishes and 'areas' in the district being designated and graphically (map) defined neighbourhood areas.

Historic England also indicated support for notification of designations and consultation with statutory consultees on draft neighbourhood plans. A revision to the proposed amendments is therefore suggested, adding an additional paragraph per the below:

The Council will ensure that statutory consultees are engaged in the preparation of neighbourhood plans at the appropriate stages.

The representations received to the consultation are not considered to justify any further revisions to the proposed amendments.

Other Representations Received

Several other representations were received to the consultation which did not directly relate to the proposed amendments but instead expressed general opinions on planning and development in the district. Themes emanating included perceived over-development, lack of infrastructure to support development, the role of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL), and insufficient consultation, as well as inconsideration to public consultation responses.

These representations have been noted but were not considered to be relevant to the specific amendments being consulted or to justify revisions to the proposed amendments.

4 RISK IMPLICATIONS

4.1 The proposed amendments to the Council's adopted SCI, provided as tracked changes at Appendix A, will ensure that the SCI remains up to date and in accordance with the relevant legislation. Failure to adopt an updated SCI may mean that the Council's SCI fails to comply with legislation and may make it

harder for residents and other interested parties to understand how the Council will support neighbourhood planning and use their data in the undertaking of community involvement in the planning process.

5 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

5.1 The updated SCI and associated public consultation were achieved using existing agreed budgets and resources.

6 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

- 6.1 The Council is required to prepare a Statement of Community Involvement under Section 18 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended).
- The GDPR has implications for all EU Member States. The GDPR and the Data Protection Act 2018 replaced the Data Protection Act 1998 from 25 May 2018. These changes to data protection should be highlighted within the SCI to outline the measures that the Council has in place to address the GDPR requirements.
- 6.3 The Neighbourhood Planning Act 2017 also necessitates an amendment to the adopted SCI to provide an appropriate level of detail on Neighbourhood Planning requirements and expectations.
- 6.4 Failure to adopt an updated SCI may therefore mean the Council's SCI fails to comply with this legislation.

7 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

7.1 An Equality Impact Assessment has been completed and found there to be no impacts (either positive or negative) on protected groups as defined under the Equality Act 2010.

8 RECOMMENDATION

8.1 It is proposed that the Sub-Committee **RECOMMENDS TO COUNCIL**

That Council adopts a revised Statement of Community Involvement, set out at Appendix A, and notes the Consultation Feedback Report, set out in Appendix B.

Shaun Scrutton

Shaw cutton

Managing Director

Background Papers: -

None.

For further information please contact Daniel Goodman (Senior Strategic Planner, Strategic Planning and Economic Regeneration) on: -

Phone: 01702 318043

Email: Daniel.goodman2@rochford.gov.uk

If you would like this report in large print, Braille or another language please contact 01702 318111.

Updated Statement of Community Involvement 2019 Planning Policy Sub-Committee 7th October 2019

Contents

		Page
1	Introduction	2
2	Planning Policy	2
	Notification and Engagement Techniques	3
	Submitting Comments	4
	Consultation Feedback	5
	Duty to Co-operate	5
	New Local Plan – Who, How and When	6
	Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging Schedule – Who, How and When	9
	Supplementary Planning Documents - Who, How and When	11
	Neighbourhood Planning	12
	Minerals and Waste Local Plans	17
3	Planning Applications	18
	Pre-Application Advice	18
	Pre-Application Consultation	18
	Planning Performance Agreements	19
	Planning Applications	19
	Planning Enforcement	22
	Appeals	23
4	Resourcing Monitoring and Review	23

1 Introduction

- 1.1 The Council, as the Local Planning Authority, is required to prepare a Statement of Community Involvement under Section 18 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (2004). The purpose of the Statement of Community Involvement is to set out the principles for engaging and consulting with local communities including residents, organisations and businesses and other interested parties on planning matters. Consultation and engagement on planning matters set out in this Statement seek to go beyond the minimum regulatory requirements¹ for community involvement in the plan making process in particular, and are in line with the Council's corporate Consultation Guide for Staff².
- 1.2 The first Statement of Community Involvement was adopted by the Council in 2007 to set out how local communities would be involved throughout the preparation of the Local Development Framework (LDF), and consultation on planning applications and planning enforcement. However, since its adoption there have been a number of legislative changes on how Local Planning Authorities should engage with local communities during plan-making and the planning application process. The 2007 Statement of Community Involvement goes beyond the minimum consultation requirements set out in the legislation, but a review is necessary to ensure that it reflects current best practice and is up-to-date prior to consultation on future local development documents.
- 1.3 The rules on how personal data is collected, processed and disposed of were updated on 25 May 2018 when the General Data Protection Regulation 2016 (GDPR) and the Data Protection Act 2018 came into force. Rochford District Council has a Data Protection Policy³ in place, and there are measures being applied to protect personal data in line with the GDPR. The Council stores and processes personal data for planning policy consultations in line with the relevant Privacy Notice⁴.

2 Planning Policy

- 2.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 155) reiterates the need for positive and effective engagement with local communities at an early stage throughout the plan-making process to realise the sustainable development of the area. This Statement of Community Involvement will set out how and when local communities will be involved and what organisations and individuals will be consulted.
- 2.2 The Council has significant experience in the preparation of local development documents. As set out in the Local Development Scheme, the Council will prepare a new Local Plan and a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging Schedule. Prior to consultation, draft policy documents will be taken to Full Council to be approved for consultation.

¹ The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012

http://www.rochford.gov.uk/community_and_people/have_your_say

³ https://www.rochford.gov.uk/sites/default/files/privacy_dataprotection.pdf

⁴ https://rochford.jdi-consult.net/localplan

Notification and Engagement Techniques

- 2.3 Anyone may comment on the preparation of a planning policy document; however it is important to ensure inclusivity throughout the plan-making process. A range of notification and engagement techniques will be employed to raise awareness and encourage participation at each stage of plan preparation. The Council recognises that some potential participants in the consultation favour paper methods of communication; electronic media will therefore not be solely relied upon. The scale of techniques used however will be dependent on document stage and may be subject to time and resource constraints. The following techniques will therefore be employed as appropriate:
 - Mailing list The Council operates a database of individuals and organisations that have expressed an interest in the plan-making process, have previously been actively involved in policy development or are statutory consultees. Those who wish to be involved will be directly notified at each stage either through email or letter of opportunities to comment. Those who are interested in planning policy development and wish to be notified can be included on the Council's mailing list at any time⁵.
 - Website Each consultation stage will feature prominently on the homepage of the Council's website⁶. This will link directly to information on document production, providing access to the consultation material and advice on how and when comments can be made. Articles providing updates on plan production, which may include consultation and engagement opportunities, may be published in Rochford District Matters periodically but it will not be solely relied upon as a means of communication. Articles providing updates on plan production, which may include consultation and engagement opportunities, may be published in the Council's online news section periodically but it will not be solely relied upon as a means of communication.
 - Libraries and Council reception areas Paper copies of consultation material, including comment forms, will be available at local libraries and Council reception areas in Rayleigh and Rochford during normal opening hours.
 - Adverts/public notices, and media briefings press releases Notices will be
 placed in a local newspaper advertising consultation and engagement
 opportunities, where appropriate. Media briefings/press releases will also be
 issued to local media.
 - Parish and Town Council and Community Group publications These types of publications are distributed to local residents at least quarterly. The Council will work with relevant organisations to utilise these publications to notify residents of consultation and engagement opportunities, where possible. Consideration will need to be given to the timing of the consultation, and the timing and circulation of any publications outside the Council's control.

Interested parties can sign up at http://rochford.jdi-consult.net/localplan/newuser.php or those without access to the internet can contact the Council directly for more information

⁶ www.rochford.gov.uk

- Posters Posters may be sent to relevant Parish and Town Councils to be displayed on notice boards to raise awareness of any public consultation and engagement opportunities. Posters may also be displayed in other appropriate locations across the District.
- Leaflets Leaflets may be used to gain wider public awareness of a consultation or engagement opportunity, for example leaflets may be distributed at key attractors/destinations such as train stations and local schools.
- Social media Media such as Twitter will be used to highlight public consultations on planning policy documents with direct links to the Council's website and information on how to comment, and any engagement events. Such messages will be retweeted periodically throughout the consultation period (@RochfordDC). However, comments will not be accepted via social media.
- Events Such events may include drop-in sessions, public exhibitions and/or targeted workshops. Parish and Town Council meetings will be utilised where possible. The type of event undertaken will be dependent on a number of factors, including the consultation stage, and time and resource constraints. Careful consideration will be given to the timing, venue and format of events to ensure accessibility and inclusivity.
- 2.4 All consultation materials produced by the Council are prepared in the corporate format (Arial size 12), however to ensure inclusive access during consultations, information can be made available in alternative formats on request, including larger print, braille, audio tape and different languages.
- 2.5 Consultation techniques used to notify local communities and other interested stakeholders shall be reviewed for effectiveness to ensure that the correct type of consultation is being implemented. Where necessary a reminder or repeat notification shall be issued to the public and stakeholders to reinforce awareness of the active consultation period.

Submitting Comments

- 2.6 The Council operates an online public consultation system where comments may be made straightforwardly against relevant parts of the document being consulted upon. Electronic media, although the most quick and efficient method for submitting comments, is not the only acceptable method. Comments may be submitted during each stage of formal public consultation in the following ways:
 - Online using the Council's online public consultation system for planning policy available at http://rochford.jdi-consult.net/localplan
 - Email planning.policy@rochford.gov.uk
 - Post Planning Policy, Rochford District Council, Council Offices, South Street, Rochford, Essex. SS4 1BW.
 - Fax 01702 318181

Rochford District Council - Draft Statement of Community Involvement

- 2.7 For less formal public consultations, the Council may utilise a simple webform as an alternative to the online public consultation system.
- 2.8 The Council cannot take a written record of comments over the telephone as they cannot be verified as a true record of the consultee's opinion. Officers will, however, scribe for people who cannot make comments on their own due to literacy or disability issues.
- 2.9 Comment forms will normally be provided in paper or Word document format on request. Respondents will be encouraged to use these particularly during the presubmission stage, as this will assist respondents in structuring their comments around the specific tests (in relation to soundness and legal compliance for the new Local Plan).
- 2.10 Comments must be made during the prescribed consultation period. Anonymous or confidential comments cannot be accepted. Late comments may be accepted in exceptional circumstances at the Council's discretion but may not be formally logged on the Council's consultation database. Any comments that are offensive, threatening, obscene, racist or illegal in any other way will not be accepted.
- 2.11 All comments accepted as duly-made will be logged on the Council's online public consultation system and will be available to view at the earliest opportunity.

Consultation Feedback

2.12 A key aspect of community involvement in plan-making is providing feedback on how comments made have been considered in the development of a Plan or document. A report will be prepared following each consultation stage setting out the notification and engagement techniques employed, a summary of the main issues raised, officer's response to these issues and information on how these have been considered as appropriate. Such reports will be published on the Council's website. Following the final consultation on a Plan or document, the Council will prepare a Consultation Statement setting out which individuals and organisations have been consulted throughout the documents preparation, how they have been consulted, the main issues that were raised and how these issues have been addressed. The Plan or document and Consultation Statement will then be submitted to the Secretary of State, alongside other evidence, for independent examination.

Duty to Co-operate

- 2.13 The Council is required by the Localism Act 2011 to effectively and constructively engage with relevant partners on strategic cross boundary matters on an ongoing basis the Duty to Co-operate. This includes neighbouring local authorities and other statutory bodies. Consideration should be given to joint working and the preparation of shared evidence base work.
- 2.14 The Council is committed to continuing to work in conjunction with relevant partners throughout the plan making process on strategic cross-boundary issues.

New Local Plan - Who, How and When

- 2.15 The new Local Plan will set out the Council's strategy for future development across the District; specific proposals and the allocation of specific sites to realise this strategy; and development management policies to support these. This document will be prepared in accordance with The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012. The timetable for the preparation of the new Local Plan is set out in the Local Development Scheme.
- 2.16 Opportunities for engagement at each stage of plan preparation are set out in the table below.

Plan Stage	Assessment Stage ⁷	Engagement Opportunities
Evidence Base preparat	ion – ongoing (Regulatio	on 18)
Gathering and reviewing background information. Preparation of technical studies and topic papers.	Collate and review baseline social, economic and environmental data. Draft and publish SA/SEA Scoping Report.	Targeted involvement of organisations and service providers. Informal consultation with key stakeholders, such as Parish and Town Councils, relevant interest groups, landowners and developers, as appropriate. Formal consultation with Natural England, Heritage England and the Environment Agency on the SEA/SA Scoping Report.
Issues and Options Doc	ument ⁸	
Draft Plan considering a wide range of topics and issues, and different options to address these.	Initial draft SA/SEA Report – assessing each of the options, including reasonable alternatives, included in draft Plan.	Formal public consultation on the scope and content of the Issues and Options Document for a minimum of six weeks. Formal public consultation on initial draft SA/SEA Report alongside Issues and Options Document.

⁷ Each published stage of a development plan document is required to be accompanied by a technical Sustainability Appraisal /Strategic Environmental Assessment (SA/SEA) legislation. A Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) will be undertaken in accordance with the HRA legislation, including an Appropriate Assessment as necessary

The Council is no longer required by legislation to prepare three formal documents for public consultation and engagement, however this is still considered to be the most appropriate approach for the preparation of the new Local Plan

Plan Stage	Assessment Stage ⁷	Engagement Opportunities
		Consultation and engagement techniques including public notices/adverts, posters, email and letter notifications, website, social media and availability of paper documentation in libraries and Council reception areas. Events including drop-in sessions and public exhibitions may be undertaken.
Preferred Options Docu	ment (Regulation 18)	
Revised draft Plan setting out preferred options for each topic and reasonable alternatives.	Revised draft SA/SEA Report – assessing each of the preferred options and reasonable alternatives included in revised draft Plan. Draft HRA – screening for likely significant effects on European sites.	Formal public consultation on the scope and content of the Preferred Options Document for a minimum of six weeks. Formal public consultation on revised draft SA/SEA Report alongside Preferred Options Document. Consultation with Natural England on the scope and content of the HRA. Publicity and engagement techniques including public notices/adverts, posters, email and letter notifications, website, social media and availability of paper documentation in libraries and Council reception areas. Events including drop-in sessions and public exhibitions may be undertaken.

Plan Stage	Assessment Stage ⁷	Engagement Opportunities		
Proposed Pre-Submission	Proposed Pre-Submission Document (Regulation 19)			
Comments from previous stage informs final draft Plan – the Proposed Pre-Submission Document. Responses to comments made are contained in a separate Interim Consultation Statement.	Final SA/SEA Report – taking into account comments received at previous stage and any amendments to draft Plan following consultation. Final HRA – reassessing likely significant effects on European sites; undertaking an Appropriate Assessment as necessary.	Formal public consultation on the Proposed Pre-Submission Document for a minimum of six weeks. At this stage representations must relate to specific tests of soundness and legal compliance to be considered by an Inspector during independent examination. However anyone may make representations (Regulation 20).		
		Formal public consultation on final SA/SEA Report alongside Proposed Pre-Submission Document.		
		Consultation with Natural England on the scope and content of the final HRA.		
		Publicity and engagement techniques including public notices/adverts, posters, email and letter notifications, website, social media and availability of paper documentation in libraries and Council reception areas.		
Independent Examination	on (Regulations 22, 23 ar	nd 24)		
Submission of Proposed Pre-Submission Document and supporting documents, including SA/SEA Report and Consultation Statement, to Secretary of State for independent examination.	Addendum to submitted SA/SEA Report.	Public examination by Planning Inspector, considering all representations received during pre- submission consultation. Hearing sessions, as necessary. Written submissions carry the same weight to those presented at hearings.		

Plan Stage	Assessment Stage ⁷	Engagement Opportunities	
Potential for Inspector to recommend modifications to make Plan sound ('Main Modifications' – those matters that materially affect the interpretation of policies in the draft Plan).		Public consultation on any proposed Main Modifications and, if needed, any addendum to the SA/SEA Report.	
Inspector's Report and A	Inspector's Report and Adoption (Regulations 25 and 26)		
Publication of Inspector's Report, including recommendations of any proposed modifications to the submitted draft Plan.	Preparation of SA/SEA Adoption Statement.	Six week period for legal challenge following adoption of the Plan.	
If found sound and legally compliant (subject to modifications), the Council may adopt the Plan.			
Preparation of Adoption Statement.			

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging Schedule – Who, How and When

- 2.17 The Community Infrastructure Levy will set a charge per square metre of new floorspace which will be levied on new development across the District, where applicable. The Levy will be prepared in accordance with The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended). The timetable for the preparation of the Community Infrastructure Levy is set out in the Local Development Scheme.
- 2.18 Opportunities for engagement at each stage of document preparation are set out in the table below.

Plan Stage	Assessment Stage	Engagement Opportunities
Evidence Base preparation		
Prepare key background documents, including Viability Assessment and Infrastructure		Informal targeted engagement with agents and developers in relation to the Viability Assessment.

Plan Stage	Assessment Stage	Engagement Opportunities
Funding Gap Assessment.		Informal engagement with Essex County Council and other service providers in the preparation of the Infrastructure Funding Gap Assessment.
Preliminary Draft Chargin	g Schedule (Regulatio	n 15)
Publication of Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule setting out the proposed charge to be levied.	Draft Viability Assessment.	Formal public consultation on content of Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule for a minimum of four weeks.
Publication of draft Regulation 123 list detailing proposed infrastructure projects to be funded through S106 Agreements and the Levy.		Publicity and engagement techniques including public notices/adverts, email and letter notifications, website, social media and availability of paper documentation in libraries and Council reception areas.
Draft Charging Schedule	(Regulation 16)	
Comments from previous stage inform Draft Charging Schedule. Responses to comments	Viability Assessment – updated as necessary.	Formal public consultation on content of Draft Charging Schedule for a minimum of four weeks.
made are contained in a separate Consultation Statement.		Publicity and engagement techniques including public notices/adverts, email and letter notifications, website and availability of paper documentation in libraries and Council reception areas.
Independent Examination (Regulations 19 and 20)		
Submission of Draft Charging Schedule and supporting documents to the Secretary of State for independent examination.		Public examination by Examiner (usually an Inspector), considering all representations. Hearing sessions, as necessary. Written submissions carry the
		same weight to those presented at hearings.

Plan Stage	Assessment Stage	Engagement Opportunities
Examiner's Report and Pu	blication (Regulations	s 23 and 25)
Publication of Examiner's Report setting out recommendations and reasons.		
If approved, the Council may adopt and publish the Charging Schedule.		

Supplementary Planning Documents – Who, How and When

- 2.19 Supplementary Planning Documents are non-statutory documents that give further advice and guidance on the interpretation of policies and proposals set out in Development Plan Documents. These documents will be prepared in accordance with The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012. The timetable for the preparation of any Supplementary Planning Documents is set out in the Local Development Scheme.
- 2.20 Opportunities for engagement at each stage of document preparation are set out in the table below.

Document Stage	Assessment Stage ⁹	Engagement Opportunities
Evidence Base preparatio	n	
Gathering and reviewing baseline information. Preparation of technical studies, as necessary.	Screening to determine whether a SA/SEA is required.	Informal targeted involvement of organisations and service providers.
	Draft and publish SA/SEA Scoping Report, if necessary.	Informal consultation with key stakeholders, such as Parish Councils, Schools, relevant interest groups, landowners and developers.
		Formal consultation with Essex Highways, Hospital Trusts, Doctors Practises, Utilities, Natural England, Heritage England and the Environment Agency on the SEA/SA Scoping Report, if necessary.

Each published stage will be accompanied by a technical Sustainability Appraisal / Strategic Environmental Assessment (SA/SEA) legislation, where required

Document Stage	Assessment Stage ⁹	Engagement Opportunities	
Draft Supplementary Plan	Draft Supplementary Planning Document (Regulation 13)		
Draft document setting out preferred options.	Draft SA/SEA Report – if required in exceptional circumstances.	Formal public consultation on the scope and content of the Draft Supplementary Planning Document for a minimum of six weeks.	
		Formal public consultation on initial draft SEA/SA Report alongside draft document – if required.	
		Publicity and engagement techniques including public notices/adverts, email and letter notifications, website, social media and availability of paper documentation in libraries and Council reception areas. Events / Exhibitions may be undertaken, as appropriate.	
Adopt Supplementary Pla	nning Document (Reg	ulations 12 and 14)	
Publication of final document taking account of consultation responses.	Publication of SA/S\EA Report (if required, in exceptional circumstances).		

Neighbourhood Planning

- 2.21 Neighbourhood planning was introduced by the Localism Act in 2011, and gives local communities new powers to take decisions to help shape and drive the development that takes place in their area. There are three main types of neighbourhood planning available to communities:
 - Neighbourhood Plan A neighbourhood plan is a statutory planning document that sets planning policies for a defined neighbourhood area. A neighbourhood plan can allocate land for development, including new homes and employment, as well as setting policies on design and uses. Once adopted, a neighbourhood plan will form part of the Council's local development plan, against which all planning applications and proposals will be determined.

- Neighbourhood Development Order A neighbourhood development order allows communities to grant planning permission for specific types of development their area.
- Community Right to Build Order A community right to build order is a form
 of a neighbourhood development order which allows communities to grant
 planning permission for local small-scale developments that would be of
 community benefit.
- 2.22 Whilst the Local Plan usually sets policies that apply to the authority area as a whole, neighbourhood plans typically set policies that will only apply to a smaller 'neighbourhood area'. In practice, these neighbourhood areas often align with parish boundaries.
- 2.23 Neighbourhood planning is community-led, as opposed to being led strictly by the Council as local planning authority. Neighbourhood plans and development orders can only be prepared by a defined 'neighbourhood forum' whilst community right to build orders can be prepared by any community organisation with 10 or more members resident in the area. Whilst a neighbourhood forum will often be a Parish or Town Council, they may also be led by other community groups, and crucially should be open and accessible to all in the local community.
- 2.24 Neighbourhood plans and orders must accord with both the Council's local development plan and national planning policy. They must also acknowledge and take account of International, European and national designations and laws (including historic and environmental designations, and human rights laws). A neighbourhood plan or development order can propose additional development to what is set out in the Council's local development plan, but cannot propose less or seek to block development that has already been approved.
- 2.25 The procedural requirements governing neighbourhood planning including consultation and engagement requirements are set out in the Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012, as amended. Where the SCI is silent, or amendments are made to these regulations that make the SCI non-compliant, the regulations will take precedence.
- 2.26 The Council will ensure that statutory consultees are engaged in the preparation of neighbourhood plans at the appropriate stages.
- 2.27 The main stages in neighbourhood planning are set out below:
 - Step 1: Designating the neighbourhood area and, if appropriate, neighbourhood forum
 - Step 2: Preparing a draft neighbourhood plan or Order
 - Step 3: Pre-submission publicity and consultation
 - Step 4: Submission of a neighbourhood plan or Order proposal to a local planning authority
 - Step 5: Independent Examination

- Step 6: Community Referendum
- Step 7: Bringing the neighbourhood plan or Order into force

What role does the Council play in Neighbourhood Planning?

- 2.28 The Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) places a statutory responsibility on the Council as local planning authority to assist communities in its area in the preparation of neighbourhood plans and orders. The Council is also expected to assist in the management of the examination and referendum stages of neighbourhood planning, where applicable.
- 2.29 The principle of neighbourhood planning is that it should primarily be led and shaped by the local community. For this reason, the Council does not directly oversee or manage the neighbourhood planning process. Instead, the Council will support neighbourhood planning in the following ways:
 - Providing advice and guidance to relevant bodies, as necessary. This includes aiding in understanding the procedural and regulatory requirements of neighbourhood planning;
 - Directing relevant bodies towards information and resources relevant to neighbourhood planning, and any organisations or funding sources which may be able to offer direct or indirect assistance;
 - Attending meetings on occasion to provide updates on local, regional and national plan-making, and highlighting the potential implications on neighbourhood planning;
 - Making relevant information and evidence available to the relevant body for their consideration, and aiding in its interpretation;
 - Reviewing documents and drafts and offering feedback, including on potential issues around accordance with the local development plan and national planning policy;
 - Fulfilling the Council's obligations to consult, as set out in the Neighbourhood Planning Regulations 2012, as amended; and
 - Making arrangements and managing the examination and referendum processes.
- 2.30 As of July 2018, only one neighbourhood area and forum have been designated in the District, at Canewdon and Wallasea Island.

Consultation Methods

2.31 The primary community engagement supporting the preparation of a neighbourhood plan, neighbourhood development order or community right to build order should be carried out by the relevant neighbourhood forum or community organisation. The Neighbourhood Planning Regulations 2012, as amended, set out the detailed

- engagement requirements that relevant bodies will be expected to fulfil as they prepare a neighbourhood plan or order. A statement will accompany any draft neighbourhood plan indicating what consultation took place and how it has informed the preparation of the plan.
- 2.32 The Neighbourhood Planning Regulations 2012, as amended, do, however, also define specific consultation requirements that the Council is expected to undertake at key stages.
- 2.33 These key stages, and the consultation that the Council will undertake at these stages, are set out in the table below:

Plan Stage	Engagement Opportunities
Neighbourhood Area designation consultation	The Council is required to hold a public consultation on any area application it receives. The date by which representations must be received will be no less than six weeks from the date the consultation commences.
	The area application, details on how to make representations, and the date by which representations must be received will all be publicised on the Council's website and in all consultation and engagement material.
	Consultation and engagement techniques may include public notices/adverts, posters, email and letter notifications, social media and availability of paper documentation in libraries and Council reception areas.
	As soon as possible after designating a neighbourhood area, the Council will publicise on its website, and any other mediums deemed appropriate, information including the name of the neighbourhood area, a map which identifies the area, and the name of the relevant body who applied for the designated. Where an application is refused, the Council will instead publicise the reasons for that decision.

Plan Stage	Engagement Opportunities
Neighbourhood Forum designation consultation	The Council is required to hold a public consultation on any forum application it receives. The date by which representations must be received will be no less than six weeks from the date the consultation commences.
	The forum application, details on how to make representations, and the date by which representations must be received will all be publicised on the Council's website and in all consultation and engagement material.
	Consultation and engagement techniques may include public notices/adverts, posters, email and letter notifications, social media and availability of paper documentation in libraries and Council reception areas.
	As soon as possible after designating a neighbourhood forum, the Council will publicise on its website, and any other mediums deemed appropriate, the name of the neighbourhood forum, a copy of the written constitution of the forum, and the name of a contact and neighbourhood area to whom the forum relates. Where an application is refused, the Council will instead publicise the reasons for that decision.
Neighbourhood Plan or Order proposal or modification proposal	The Council is required to hold a public consultation on any proposed neighbourhood plan or order, or proposed modification to a plan or order that it receives. The date by which representations must be received will be no less than six weeks from the date the consultation commences.
	Details of the proposal, how to inspect the proposal, details of how to make representations and the date by which those representations must be received will be publicised on the Council's website and in all consultation and engagement material.
	Consultation and engagement techniques may include public notices/adverts, posters, email and letter notifications, website, social media and availability of paper documentation in libraries and Council reception areas. In the case where an order proposal triggers the requirements of Regulation 33 of the EIA Regulations, the Council will also place details of the proposal on a site notice on or near the land in question, and a notice in a newspaper circulating in the locality.
	As soon as possible after making a decision under Regulations 18 or 25 of the Neighbourhood Planning Regulations 2015, the Council will publish its decision statement and the examiner's report, including details of where that statement can be inspected, on its website and by any other mediums deemed appropriate.

Plan Stage	Engagement Opportunities
Community Referendum	The Council will organise a referendum on any plan that has been considered at examination to meet the basic standards. People living the neighbourhood area who are registered to vote in local elections will be entitled to vote in this referendum. The Council will organise and publicise the referendum as it would for any local election.
Decision to make, or refuse to make, a neighbourhood plan or order	The Council will publicise its decision statement, the made neighbourhood plan or order (if applicable), and details of how to inspect both documents on its website and through any other medium deemed appropriate.
	This information may be publicised by email and letter notifications, social media and availability of paper documentation in libraries and Council reception areas. The Council will directly contact the relevant body and any other individuals who asked to be notified of the making of the neighbourhood plan or order, as required by the Neighbourhood Planning Regulations 2012, as amended.
Modifications to or revocation of a neighbourhood plan or order	The Council will publish a statement setting out the reasons for modifications or revocations, and details of how to inspect this statement, on its website and through any other medium deemed appropriate.
	This information may be publicised by email and letter notifications, social media and availability of paper documentation in libraries and Council reception areas. The Council will directly contact the relevant body and any other individuals who asked to be notified of the making of the neighbourhood plan or order, as required by the Neighbourhood Planning Regulations 2012, as amended.

Minerals and Waste Local Plans

2.34 The preparation and review of Minerals and Waste Local Plans is the responsibility of Essex County Council. The District Council is, and will continue to be, a consultee on such plans. The progress of the County Council's Minerals and Waste Local Plans and their Statement of Community Involvement, can be found on the County Council's website¹⁰.

¹⁰ http://www.essex.gov.uk

3 Planning Applications

3.1 A planning application must be submitted to the Local Planning Authority – Rochford District Council – before development takes places. The exception to this is where certain types of development is automatically permitted by legislation, referred to as permitted development. An applicant can apply to the Council for a Lawful Development Certificate to determine whether a proposal is permitted development or not; more information on this process is available on the Planning Portal website¹¹.

Pre-Application Advice

- 3.2 The Council offers a chargeable pre-application advice service. This service enables applicants to discuss their proposals with officers, understand how policies and guidance would be applied, and identify where any specialist input would be required early on in the process before submitting a formal planning application. The aim of this service is to ensure that valid, better quality applications are submitted to the Council which are more likely to have a greater chance of a positive outcome.
- 3.3 Pre-application advice is available for all types of development including householder applications; however it is particularly encouraged for major development proposals. This service includes options for a written generic response from officers to proposals, a meeting with written advice and a follow up meeting. Additional urban design advice is also available. Members can be involved in pre-application discussions for minor, major or strategic development proposals. More information on pre-application advice is available on the Council's website 12.
- 3.4 Such advice will be based on the case officer's professional judgement and will not constitute a formal response or decision of the Council with regard to any future planning applications. Any views or opinions expressed, are given without prejudice to the consideration by the Council of any formal planning application, which will be subject to wider consultation and publicity. Although the case officer may indicate the likely outcome of a formal planning application, no guarantees can or will be given about the decision that will be made on any such application.
- 3.5 The Council will not normally undertake any public consultation for applicants that have sought pre-application advice for a proposal. This avoids unproductive involvement for local communities as no formal planning application has been submitted at this stage.

Pre-Application Consultation

3.6 Consultation with local communities is encouraged for applicants seeking permission for major development in particular. When such engagement takes place it is at the discretion of the applicant and can take place prior to seeking pre-application advice, if sought, or prior to submission of a planning application. The results of any public consultation should be provided to the Local Planning Authority with a planning application.

www.planningportal.gov.uk/permission/next/lawfuldevelopmentcertificate

www.rochford.gov.uk/planning/planning applications/planning pre-application advic

Rochford District Council - Draft Statement of Community Involvement

- 3.7 There are a number of benefits for consulting affected communities prior to the submission of a planning application, including:
 - Providing local communities with accurate information on a proposal before a formal application is submitted;
 - Enabling local concerns and objections to be identified early in the process and be addressed, where possible;
 - Providing an opportunity for local communities to discuss proposals with the applicant (for example at public meetings);
 - Potentially avoiding the need to revise and / or resubmit proposals at an advanced stage;
 - Encouraging a transparent and inclusive application process;
 - Assisting in the submission of better quality applications.
- 3.8 The Council supports pre-application consultation with local communities but will not normally be involved in this process. However, the applicant may wish to seek advice on effective engagement techniques prior to submission of a formal application such techniques may include; public meetings, public exhibitions, workshops, notices/articles in local media, and consultation letters.
- 3.9 Applicants should also consider consulting organisations such as Essex County Council (as the highways and education authority, and urban design advisor to the Council), Heritage England, the Environment Agency and Natural England for advice depending on the development being proposed.

Planning Performance Agreements

3.10 The Council will, for some types of applications, enter into a Planning Performance Agreement (PPA) with an applicant. A PPA is an agreement between the Council and an applicant setting out the process and timescales for considering some larger and more complex proposals from the pre-application stage through to the submission and determination of a full application. A PPA can include information on community involvement such as techniques for engaging with affected communities and how their views will be incorporated. Once a PPA has been entered into, the statutory time limit for the determination of the planning application no longer applies.

Planning Applications

3.11 Copies of all valid planning applications are published on the Council's website¹³ and are available to view at the Council offices in Rayleigh and Rochford during normal opening hours.

¹³ www.rochford.gov.uk

- 3.12 The Council will advertise planning applications in the following ways, depending on the type of application in accordance with, and where possible beyond, the requirements of the relevant legislation:
 - Neighbour notification Occupiers of properties most likely to be affected by a
 proposal will be notified by letter that an application has been received. Written
 comments will be invited and should be received within 21 days of the date of
 the letter. The extent of the neighbour notification process will vary depending
 on the type of proposal for which permission is being sought. This will be at or
 beyond the level specified by the legislation.
 - Site notices These yellow notices will be displayed in the vicinity of the site
 where a planning application has been made. The site notice will list details of
 the application together with information on how plans and supporting
 information can be viewed and how comments can be made on the application.
 Site notices will be displayed for all major applications, and applications that are
 considered likely to affect a Listed Building or a Conservation Area. However, not
 all planning applications will be publicised with the use of a site notice.
 - Statutory consultees The Council seeks to engage with a number of organisations who may have an interest in the planning process; including Essex County Council Highways and education departments, English Heritage, Natural England and the Environment Agency. However, not all such organisations are consulted on each application this will depend on the location, scale and type of planning application under consideration. Consultees are notified in writing and, as with local residents, have 21 days in which to respond. In addition bodies such as Natural England will be allowed a longer period of time to comment on applications where this is prescribed by legislation.
 - Website Major residential planning applications are publicised on the Council's home page. This will link to a dedicated page for each application providing more detailed information on the proposals, easy access to key plans and supporting documents and information on how comments can be made.
 - Public Access All planning applications are available to view on the Council's e-planning system¹⁴. Planning applications can be searched by address, application reference number or geographically using the map of the District provided. This system provides access to submitted plans, supporting documents and statements, comments received, the officer's report and decision notice (depending on the status of the application).
 - Social media Planning applications may feature on the Council's Twitter feed for planning applications which are automatically tweeted from the Council's planning management system (@RDCplanningapps).
 - Local media Applications classified as being major applications or those which could affect the character or appearance of a Conservation Area or Listed Building will be advertised in a local newspaper.

http://maps.rochford.gov.uk/DevelopmentControl.aspx?RequestType=ParseTemplate&Template=Development ControlSearch.tmplt

- Consultation with Parish / Town Councils.
- 3.13 All planning applications can be examined on the Council's Public Access site. For those without access to the internet, all relevant information is available to view at the Council offices in Rochford and Rayleigh, during normal opening hours.
- 3.14 Anyone can comment on a planning application. Comments need to be made in writing to the Council in the following ways:
 - Online via the webform or planning application system following the instructions available at:
 http://www.rochford.gov.uk/planning/planning_applications/comment_on_a_planning_app
 - Email planning.applications@rochford.gov.uk
 - Post Planning Applications, Rochford District Council, Council Offices, South Street, Rochford, Essex. SS4 1BW.
 - Fax 01702 318181
- 3.15 The Council cannot take a written record of comments over the telephone as they cannot be verified as a true record of the consultee's opinion. Officers will, however, scribe for people who cannot make comments on their own due to literacy or disability issues.
- 3.16 Those commenting on a planning application are encouraged to provide contact details, however anonymous comments will be accepted in most circumstances at the discretion of the case officer, but may be given less weight as the context within which the comments have been made (i.e. if the person commenting is neighbours the application site or not) may be less obvious. All comments received will be considered by the case officer and included in the officer's report; comments will also be redacted and published on the Council's Public Access site.
- 3.17 Comments must be made during the prescribed consultation period. Late comments may be accepted in exceptional circumstances at the case officer's discretion. Any comments that are offensive, threatening, obscene, racist or illegal in any other way will not be accepted.
- 3.18 Communication will not generally be entered into with objectors or supporters of an application once the comments have been submitted. However, the Council will endeavour to update those who have submitted comments on a planning application at several stages either through direct correspondence, the Council's website or other media, as appropriate:
 - Mid-application In the event that the application will be determined at Development Committee, members of the public who have commented on the application will be informed of this. They will be provided with the date, time and venue of the relevant Committee. This information will be updated on the Council's website.
 - Alterations When an applicant makes changes to a proposal mid-application, depending on the scale of such changes, the Local Planning Authority will usually write to those who have commented previously inviting further comment. This information will also be updated on the Council's website.

- Post-application Once the application has been determined the Council will
 update the Public Access site, and the website if applicable, detailing the
 outcome of the application and how to get further information if required. The
 agent (or applicant where there is no agent) will be sent the decision notice by
 email or post on the day of issue or the first working day following date of issue.
- Appeals When an applicant appeals against the decision of the Council to refuse their proposal or against non-determination of an application, those that have contributed along with other neighbours who adjoin the site, will be informed that an appeal has been made. This will be done in writing and will include details on how to comment on the appeal application.
- 3.19 In addition to the Public Access site being updated following the determination of a planning application, the Council also publishes a monthly decisions register on its website¹⁵.

Planning Enforcement

- 3.20 The Council's planning enforcement service investigates alleged breaches of planning control. Such alleged breaches may be reported by Members, other Council departments, other organisations or members of the public. The Council's Enforcement Policy is available to view on the Council's website¹⁶.
- 3.21 Alleged breaches of planning control can be reported in any of the following ways:
 - Online using the webform available at: www.rochford.gov.uk/planning/enforcement
 - Email planning.enforcement@rochford.gov.uk
 - Post Planning Enforcement, Rochford District Council, Council Offices, South Street, Rochford, Essex. SS4 1BW.
 - In person at the Council offices in Rochford or Rayleigh during normal opening hours
 - Phone 01702 318191
 - Fax 01702 318181
- 3.22 The Council does not accept anonymous enforcement complaints. Anonymous complaints will only be registered where the breach is extremely serious and/or can be readily detected. The identity of complainants is kept confidential.
- 3.23 Consultation is not undertaken for enforcement cases; however the Council will endeavour to update the complainant with all relevant details, including notification of

http://www.rochford.gov.uk/planning/planning_applications/monthly-applications-decisions-register

¹⁶ www.rochford.gov.uk/planning/enforcement

any relevant planning applications submitted. The Council will, in most circumstances, do this over the phone or by writing to the complainant via email or post.

Appeals

- 3.24 An applicant can appeal to the Planning Inspectorate against the decision of the Council where an application has been refused permission, or where a proposal has been granted consent with conditions that are considered to be unacceptable to the applicant. An applicant can also appeal against non-determination of an application within the statutory time limit, or the revised timescales if an extension of time has been agreed. Appeals can also be made against enforcements notices.
- 3.25 Those who were consulted on the original planning application, as well as those who made comments on the proposal, will be notified of the appeal. In the case of enforcement notices, it is the responsibility of the Council to notify everyone who it thinks is affected about the appeal. The Council may also publicise an appeal on the Council's website or in local media if considered necessary. Depending on the type of application and the reason(s) for the appeal, different appeal procedures may be followed; through written representations, a hearing or a public inquiry.
- 3.26 The Council will send the Planning Inspectorate copies of any comments received during consultation on the planning application. These comments will be considered by the Inspector who determines the appeal. Further written comments can be made, except in the case of Householder Appeals. Those who did not comment at the application stage can still comment on an appeal. Interested parties can also present their views verbally before a Planning Inspector during appeals that are decided by an informal hearing or public inquiry. More information on planning appeals can be found on the Council's website¹⁷.

4 Resourcing, Monitoring and Review

- 4.1 The implementation of the Statement of Community Involvement will require the use of the Council's resources including finances and officer time.
- 4.2 Public consultation and engagement on the Council's planning policies will be undertaken primarily by planning officers, in conjunction with other departments where relevant. The Council will allocate money from its budget towards the preparation of the new Local Plan and Community Infrastructure Levy, taking into account the cost of implementing the requirements set out in the Statement of Community Involvement. The Local Development Scheme sets out the timescale for the production of these documents. This timetable factors in the time required for public consultation and engagement to be carried out at various stages.
- 4.3 The Council's approach for consulting on planning applications have allowed for the timescales in which applications are required to be determined in accordance with the legislation.

www.rochford.gov.uk/planning/planning applications/planning appeal information

Rochford District Council – Draft Statement of Community Involvement

- 4.4 The Council will monitor the effectiveness of the Statement of Community Involvement, through considering:
 - The level of community participation that it generates, particularly from groups that may have found themselves excluded from the process in the past;
 - The degree to which the views of those participating translate into actual planning outcomes;
 - The level of feedback received by those participating from the Council
- 4.5 The Statement of Community Involvement does not specify in detail all the community participation activities that will be carried out in order to maintain a flexible approach. It is intended, however, that the level of engagement will be beyond the minimum level required by legislation, wherever possible.



Rochford District Council Council Offices South Street Rochford Essex SS4 1BW Phone: 01702 546366

Phone: 01702 546366 customerservices@rochford.gov.uk Website: www.rochford.gov.uk

Statement of Community Involvement Amendments 2019: Feedback Report

Why have we prepared and consulted on amendments to our Statement of Community Involvement?

- 1.1 The Council's adopted Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) 2016 needs to be amended to take into account recent legislative changes relating to data protection and neighbourhood planning, as well as to support the preparation of the South Essex Joint Strategic Plan (JSP). Addendums to the adopted SCI are therefore proposed as a reasonable approach to accommodate this. The amendments relating to data protection will be inserted at the end of the Introduction to the Council's SCI, and the amendments relating to neighbourhood planning would replace paragraph 2.21 of the Council's adopted SCI.
- 1.2 The SCI's role is to outline how local communities, including residents, organisations and businesses, and other interested parties, will be involved in plan-making and the consideration of planning applications.
- 1.3 Further to a decision by Council on 30 October 2018, a set of proposed amendments and additions to the Council's adopted SCI were subject to a period of public consultation between Thursday 18 July and Thursday 29 August 2019 in line with best practice. The representations received to the consultation have been reviewed and summarised further below.

Summary of Publicity and Notifications

- 1.4 The SCI consultation was advertised in a number of ways, including:
 - Material displayed prominently on the Council's website;
 - Material displayed in Council offices and local libraries throughout the District;
 - Emails and letters sent to residents, organisations and statutory consultees registered on the Council's planning policy consultation database (JDi) and through the corporate GovDelivery notification system;
 - Regular posts and reminders on the Council's social media accounts, including on both Twitter and Facebook.
- 1.5 The Council's planning policy also regularly responded to requests for information and clarity received by telephone and email.

Summary of Representations to the Consultation

- 1.6 Representations were received from statutory consultees as well as from residents within the District. Statutory consultees which made representation included Historic England; Natural England; Highways England; Chelmsford City Council and Southend-on-Sea Borough Council.
- 1.7 Whilst many of the representations responded to the proposed amendments to the SCI, there were some representations that considered the consultation to be an

opportunity to express concerns and other interests relating to planning policy and control, as well as other Council business.

A summary of the representations received is provided below:

Data Protection

1.8 All representations received concerning the proposed amendments indicated no objection.

Neighbourhood Planning

- 1.9 Many of the representations received indicated support for the proposed amendments, highlighting in particular the importance of future consultation, engagements and referendums being well advertised and publicised. Some representations indicated support for more parishes and 'areas' in the District being designated and graphically (map) defined neighbourhood areas.
- 1.10 Historic England also indicated support for notification of designations and consultation with statutory consultees on draft neighbourhood plans. A revision to the proposed amendments is therefore suggested, adding an additional paragraph per the below:
 - The Council will ensure that statutory consultees are engaged in the preparation of neighbourhood plans at the appropriate stages.
- 1.11 The representations received to the consultation are not considered to justify any further revisions to the proposed amendments.

Other Representations Received

- 1.12 Several other representations were received to the consultation which did not directly relate to the proposed amendments but instead expressed general opinions on planning and development in the District. Themes emanating included perceived over-development, lack of infrastructure to support development, the role of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL), and insufficient consultation as well as inconsideration to public consultation responses.
- 1.13 These representations have been noted but were not considered to be relevant to the specific amendments being consulted or to justify revisions to the proposed amendments.

Appendix A – Initial Response to Representations Received

Rep ID	Details	Initial Officer Response
37484	(Comment) Paragraph 1 - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning	
	In keeping with your recent invitation we submit comments On behalf of Action Groups Resisting Overdevelopment :-	
	1. PUBLIC PERCEPTIONS - Decades of Urban Sprawl (on 'exempt' Green Belt) has made a mockery of Public Consultation which is now perceived as a 'tick the box' compliance tool. This is the primary reason why the public response is historically minimal (sic: 'there is no point'). 2. THE REALITY -	This is outside the remit of this consultation.
	The central Government aspirations on new housing targets (via user friendly Councils) is not matched by Strategic Planning (Infrastructure) funding. This poses those same Councils with an impossible task because they are under-funded & under resourced; and anyway the Primary Consultee (ECC) dictate the	This is outside the remit of this consultation.
	key issues (Health/Education/Highways/Flooding). 3. THE PRIMARY PROBLEM - The Government's NPPF Policy is designed to drive Council Planning in a set direction (Call for Sites is the only source of 'free' land supply). Inevitably, in the predominantly Green Belt Rochford Peninsular, this means the very essence of GB Law is	This is outside the remit of this consultation.
	breached. 4. THE SECONDARY PROBLEM - With limited resource, funding, deference to ECC and Party loyalties the Rochford District Council have no choice but to elect isolated random plots as a so-called Preferred Option. The current Local Plan is a prime example and, by using the same formulae, the	This is outside the remit of this consultation.
	"New" Local Plan will yield more of the same (errors). 5. THE TERTIARY PROBLEM - Decades of 'efficiencies / capping / cuts and Austerity' have eroded both County and Local Council capability for so long that a prevailing climate of make do & mend	This is outside the remit of this consultation.
	precludes any vision. This acceptance extends to	

the Essex MP's who are noticeable by their absence in		
recognising their Governments flawed Planning		
6. WHAT WE NEED -		
The (now overdue) Joint Strategic Plan for the	This is outside the remit of this	
	consultation.	
standard		
approach again - the scale of housing is too large now.		
This critical document must give a clear new direction		
on planning the subsequent " New" Local Plans in a new, modern, long-term (sustainable) manner. This		
must include assessments of strategic Infrastructure funding levels required to support Government housing targets - not blind acceptance.		
This cannot be solved by Public Consultation, the		
in Planning needs to be addressed by those responsible for it at both RDC and ECC - now.		
(Comment) Paragraph 8 - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning	Comment noted. The District Council undertakes public consultation in accordance with the current adopted SCI and seeks to	
You also need to arrange meetings and advertise them.	go beyond the minimum regulatory requirements wherever possible, particularly for plan making.	
(Comment) Paragraph 9 - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning	Comment noted. The first stage is for a Parish or Town Council to submit a Neighbourhood Area application to the District Council for	
Why is there only one area? Has this improved in July 2019?	consideration and approval. This is regulated by the Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations	
You need to make sure all parishes and "areas" in your district have designated neighbourhood areas.	2012 (as amended).	
(Comment) Paragraph 12, Community Referendum - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning		
1	Comment noted. The District	
	Essex MP's who are noticeable by their absence in even recognising their Governments flawed Planning policy. 6. WHAT WE NEED - The (now overdue) Joint Strategic Plan for the South corridor of Essex must not be repeating the standard approach again - the scale of housing is too large now. This critical document must give a clear new direction on planning the subsequent " New" Local Plans in a new, modern, long-term (sustainable) manner. This must include assessments of strategic Infrastructure funding levels required to support Government housing targets - not blind acceptance. This cannot be solved by Public Consultation, the Crisis in Planning needs to be addressed by those responsible for it at both RDC and ECC - now. (Comment) Paragraph 8 - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning You also need to arrange meetings and advertise them. (Comment) Paragraph 9 - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning Why is there only one area? Has this improved in July 2019? You need to make sure all parishes and "areas" in your district have designated neighbourhood areas. (Comment) Paragraph 12, Community Referendum - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and	

	sure their voice is heard? You need to host meetings which are clearly communicated, starting, well ahead of schedule with constant reminders leading up to the event.	Development consultation is outside the remit of this consultation.
37480	(Comment) Paragraph 6 - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning	
	Step 6. How is the "Community Referendum" presented. I have never been consulted in any other form than a yellow notice tied to the nearest sturdy structure - that you don't remove and therefore remain until the string rots.	Comment noted. The District Council will undertake local referendums relating to each Neighbourhood Plan area as part of neighbourhood plan-making.
37479	(Comment) Paragraph 4 - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning	
	What happens to these "European Laws" after 31/10/2019?	Most of the content of European Law has or will become part of UK law when the United Kingdom leaves the European Union.
37478	(Comment) Paragraph 3 - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning	
	It's not just about being "open and accessible", it also needs to be communicated with RDC hosted meetings which are well advertised.	Comment noted.
37477	(Comment) Paragraph 2 - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning	Comment noted.
	These neighbourhood areas need to be clearly defined in a graphical form (a map) and any changes communicated.	
37476	(Comment) Paragraph 1 - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning	
	There is no definition on the words "Gives Communities the Power" or a clear meaning of 'communities'.	Comment noted.
	Clearly, these "powers" amount to nothing as our concerns have been totally ignored and you have continued to allow these developments to continue unabated, with flagrant disregard for infrastructure	This is outside the remit of this consultation.

37475	(Object) Paragraph 1 - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning	
	Any further planning for new housing has to stop. Our small town cannot cope anymore. We havnt the inforstructer of facilities to support more people. Roads are like car parks coming in and out of Rayleigh. This also puts added strain on our health survice.schools ect. You need to stop thinking of money and support the local community. And all the time our council tax is going up and we are suffering.	This is outside the remit of this consultation.
37474	(Comment) Paragraph 1 - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning	
	Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) (Refer to the SCI 2016- page 10).	This is outside the remit of this consultation.
	This CIL is in accordance with Regulation 2010 (As amended) in particular the Charging Schedule Clauses 2.17 and 2.18. HRA ask if the CIL is mentioned in the Core Strategy and the NPPF, HRA are concerned with the insufficient consultation as to the "Evidence Base Preparation" and "Infrastructure Funding Gap Assessment" (CI. 18), and the preliminary "Draft Charging Schedule" (Regulations 15 and 16) stated in the 'future tense'. HRA have not had the opportunity to engage on the "Timetable" for the preparation of the CIL as set out in the Local Development Scheme.	
	In consideration of the Malyons Lane development, now in construction, please provide us with the information as to how the CIL applies to the developer for incorporation of this Levy and what the sums of money are involved. We have not seen mention of this levy in the 'Contributions' of £4.5m by the developer. Please provide us with information on the Draft Charging Schedule to allow us an observation and comment opportunity. Will these charges be subject to consultation with the developer and what if these charges are insufficient to cope with the required contributions from the residents?	This is outside the remit of this consultation.
	We are pleased to see that RDC have resurrected the Localism Act which gives local communities new powers to make decisions to help shape and drive the development/s in the area.	Comment noted.
	There is no definition on the words "Gives Communities the Power" or a clear meaning of 'communities'.	Comment noted.

HRA have put forward many issues in respect of Malyons Lane, which, although not acknowledged, have been instrumental in amendments to the plans put forward by the developer, and we have had an impact by a 3 to 4 years delay in the construction works. We must remind RDC that HRA have been involved in all issues of developments since 2013 and demand the right to be consulted.

Many issues have not been resolved, specifically in relation to "Flood", existing "Drainage (foul and surface water", which has been neglected since 1968 and infrastructure.

Road improvements

There is no mention of 'road improvements' to Watery Lane, which has a direct impact on the road network in Hullbridge. Can RDC explain why the CPO has not been used to widen Watery lane? Several years ago HRA predicted that allocating two sites close together (Hullbridge and Rawreth) will cause chaos, and that has certainly come to pass. This means that the morning and evening 'rush hours' gridlock extends to the whole day and will continue for the next 10 to 15 years, or more if other developments are approved.

Section 6 - Contributions.

HRA wrote to RDC and the NHS requesting information on how the individual contributions were arrived at. A response from NHS presented a major calculation discrepancy and our calculations for the Medical services (£164k- in 2013) should be £384k (2016). We did not receive a response from NHS regards making good the shortfall, and you can understand our concerns for the future of our medical practitioners. We spoke to BDW and they said simply that was what was agreed between all parties. If you take into consideration our 'expansion' figures below, we think the future contributions may be similarly calculated.

Expansion-Homes, Population and effect on Insurance.

New Homes Population

East Hullbridge 7 to 14 28 to 56

East Rawreth 1,773 to 3,545 7,092 to 14,180 West Hullbridge 926 to 1,350 3,704 to 5,400 North Hullbridge 537 to 1,074 2,152 to 4,304 South Hullbridge 134 to 268 536 to 1,072 Central Hullbridge 3,100 3,100 7,500 to 7,500 Existing.

Total 6,477 to 9,351 21,012 to 32,512

This is outside the remit of this consultation.

Г	T	
37473	The total population may be some 21,000 to 32,500 in 10 to 15 years. In consideration of what the Core Strategy and NPPF state, we say that Hullbridge can be classified as 'over-dev (Comment) Paragraph 10 - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning	
	Consultation methods Clauses 10, 11 and 12 provides the right for a the "Community" to prepare a NP or Development Order, we apply for this right again, or ask the Council to give us good reason why HRA is not favoured as Canewdon and Wallasea are to do this work, under the 'engagement opportunities' described in the plan stages.	Comment noted. The first stage is for a Parish or Town Council to submit a Neighbourhood Area application to the District Council for consideration and approval. This is regulated by the Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 (as amended).
37472	(Comment) Paragraph 9 - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning Clause 9 Only one area - Canewdon and Wallasea area given the status of Neighbourhood Forum.	Comment noted.
37471	(Comment) Paragraph 8 - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning Clause 8 The principle of the NP is that it should be led and shaped by the local community but the council does not directly oversee or manage the NP process, but will support NP in the following ways: Provide advice and guidance, directing relevant bodies towards information and resources relevant to NP and funding sources, attend meetings and make information available for consideration. Reviewing documents and giving feedback and advice, thus fulfilling the council's obligations to the NP Regulations S 2012, as amended. HRA accept all the criteria given above and have stated that we will cooperate with all relevant bodies including the Parish Council as is part of the 2012 NP Regulations/Guidance. If the Councils consider in any way that HRA are unqualified or inexperienced, can they please inform us, and we will be happy to consider a meeting to discuss our proposal. We consider the 'accent' on "Community Involvement" via a NPG can be of great advantage to the Council, given that there is	Comment noted.

	1	
	the possibility of some 3,500 to 6300 (accurate calculations at date of this letter) homes that may be developed in Hullbridge.	
37470	(Comment) Paragraph 7 - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning	
	Clause 7. HRA understand the RDC Statutory responsibility as a local authority, who would 'assist' communities in preparation of NP's and the examination and referendum stages of NP where applicable.	Comment noted.
37469	(Comment) Paragraph 3 - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning	
	Item 3. Quote - "NP and DO can only be prepared by a 'defined' Neighbourhood Forum" we repeat our request to form a Neighbourhood Planning Group in the same manner RDC have allowed for Canewdon and Wallasea	Comment noted.
	HRA letter dated 11.5.14 to RDC. Sets out, in brief, from the Guidance notes for 'applicants' etc, extracted from "Supporting Communities in Neighbourhood Planning" with questions to each Subject we understand, and observing details, the important clauses crucial to the success of the NPG depends on adhering to these rules and regulations, as follows: Page 3 Plans and eligibility. Page 4 Officially designated Neighbourhood or designated Neighbourhood Forum. Page 5 To support all groups to achieve the final stages and funding.	
	Page 11 Completing the application including stages reached, the Nature of neighbourhood planning, Demography, Levels of expertise, Staffing, Funding resources and support for other groups. Page 13- Evidence based preparation- community engagement, Identity aims & issues, writing policies updating the plans as recommended and identify grants & funds needed. Regrettably we did not receive a response. Have RDC considered the impact on Hullbridge, with about 3,000 to 6,300 homes being developed, expanding our population from 7,500 to 32,500, we emphasise this is tantamount to over-development. Please inform us of the reasons you consider we will not be able to administer the NPG?	This is outside the remit of this consultation.

		·
37468	(Comment) Paragraph 2 - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning	
	Item 2. The NP sets policies that will only apply to a smaller 'neighbourhood area' which often align with parish boundaries. HRA stated that RDC should review the Parish boundary between Hullbridge and Rawreth, we were ignored, although we were instrumental in notifying the RDC that the review should have been conducted 'before' accepting the OPA on Mayons Lane, we are justified in requesting the credit for this oversight by RDC. Besides the fact that this is a 'large development' which the Parish council are not equipped to deal with as we have explained before, however once again we state that our proposal will be a great benefit to RDC and HPC for HRA to administer the NPG.	Comment noted.
37467	(Comment) Paragraph 1 - Statement of	
	Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning	
	Item 1 (page 1) This NP was introduced by the "Localism Act" in 2011 and gives local communities new powers to take decisions to help shape and drive the development that takes place in their area. Would you agree this can be done by proven professionally qualified groups, by example, such as the Hulbridge Residents Association (HRA) in the same way the District Council have accepted the Neighbourhood Forum of "Canewdon and Wallasea" as designated in the District (clause 9), and why Hullbridge have not been given the same opportunity, despite several requests to administer the Neighbourhood Planning Group (NPG) in accordance with the Neighbourhood Planning Regulations 2012, with the added advantage of seeking a Charitable status, with your approval, for funding purposes.	Comment noted.
	Neighbourhood Plan -	Comment noted.
	HRA were advised by Westminster Planning Department to apply to you, but we did not receive a reply. Hullbridge Parish Council (HPC) conceded at a council meeting in 2016 (also attended by the Rural Community Council of Essex (RCCE)) that they were unable to administer projects due to lack of knowledge of large scale development planning matters. HRA 22-member committee were at this HPC meeting and we consider that HPC missed the	

	The "Addendum C"- Draft Neighbourhood Planning Addendum- replacing paragraph 2.21 of the adopted SCI 2016 stated that "NP" was for guiding the future development and growth of a local area which can be produced by Parish, Town Councils and acceptable 'communities', governed by the Neighbourhood Planning (general) Regulations 2012. The Parish/Town Council are responsible for undertaking consultation and engagement during the preparation stage of NP's in accordance with the legislation and guidance, however the Hullbridge community has had no consultation with the Parish	Comment noted.
37466	(Comment) Paragraph 3 - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning	
	Item 1 (cont). Community Right to build Order This section is for the Parish Council, but the accent seems to be on the word "Community", which is in conflict with what we have been speaking about ie that HRA are well 'equipped' to prepare and administer this NP, as stated above, that HPC are unable to deal with large scale developments, but the community representative (HRA) are not provided the opportunity to participate in cooperation with the RDC and HPC in accordance with the rules and regulations set out in the Addendum C.	
	Item 1 (cont). Neighbourhood Development Order We have been in discussions with a Councillor about the possibilities of involvement with a Development Board, which we are happy to participate with, and we were hoping this would lead to some result, but to date we have had no progress.	
	opportunity to introduce HRA as a 'Professional Group' able to undertake the proposed Neighbourhood Planning Group. The HPC have had ample opportunity to discuss this and come to an agreement, but they have never tried. HRA have provided adequate proof of our 'professionalism' to administer a Neighbourhood Planning Group, under a charitable status to find funds to do this work, RDC and HPC were also copied into this correspondence, but our proposals have continually been rejected, despite us having a robust 'constitution' in accordance with the CPALC 10 point Guiding Principles, which is close to the Constitution observed by the RDC, along with professionally qualified and experienced committee members. HRA will abide by the 7 stages of the NP as set out in item 6, page 2.	Comment noted.

	Council.	
37465	(Comment) Paragraph 1 - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning	
	We respond to your letter dated 19 July 2019 on behalf of the Hullbridge Community population of apoprox.7500, requesting our 'Statement of Community Involvement' (SCI) in respect of the proposed amendments and additions to the adopted SCI of 2016. We note that the amendments relating to the Data protection will be inserted 'after' you have received our statement, if so how will these amendments be identified for our view?	Amendments to the Statement of Community Involvement 2016 will be published and available to view on the Council's web site to support the Council's new emerging Local Plan.
	We refer to the Laws empowering the community to use the Freedom of Information Act, Localism Act (2011), The National Planning Policy Framework as prescribed by the Communities and Local Government Act (March 2012) and provides the framework for local people to produce their own Distinctive Local and Neighbourhood Plans affecting the needs and priorities of their communities (April 2012), and includes the Regulations Governing Neighbourhood Planning Laws, The Consultation procedures laid down in the Core Strategy and Site Allocation Documents, The Allocation DPD Document (Feb 2010) - Discussion & Consultative Document on page 1 (Introduction) that the Council SCI is committed to Regulation 25 Public Participation in the preparation of Planning for the District.	Comment noted. The District Council undertakes extensive public consultation in accordance with the current adopted SCI to positively inform its plan preparation.
37464	(Comment) Paragraph 1 - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning	
	Respondent: Historic England	
	Dear Planning Policy Team	
	Draft Statement of Community Involvement for Rochford District 2019	
	Thank you for consulting Historic England on the Draft Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) for Rochford District 2019. As the Government's adviser on the historic environment Historic England is keen to ensure that the protection of the historic environment is fully taken into account at all stages and levels of the local planning process.	Noted.
	We support the general aims and approach to the draft Statement of Community Involvement. We	

	welcome the reference to statutory consultees under duty to co-operate at paragraph 2.13 with respect to general planning policy at paragraph 2.3 as well as with regard to planning applications at paragraph 3.12. However, it would be helpful if specific mention could be made in paragraphs 2.3 and 2.13 to Historic England being a statutory consultee. Please amend the references in paragraphs 3.9 and 3.12 to Historic England not English Heritage or Heritage England.	
	With regards to neighbourhood planning, we would welcome notification of proposed neighbourhood planning areas as well as consultation on draft plans. The regulations state that statutory bodies including Historic England should be consulted on draft plans where our interests are considered to be affected. This should be included in your amendment to paragraph 2.21. We have guidance on neighbourhood planning, which can be found at:	
	We would welcome consultation at an informal level, in addition to the requirements of the legislation, where issues may benefit from our early involvement. For information and for further consultation please note our consultation email address	
	We hope that the above comments are of assistance. If you would like any clarification or would like to discuss the above please do not hesitate to contact me.	
37463	(Comment) Paragraph 1 - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood	
	Respondent: Historic England	
	With regards to neighbourhood planning, we would welcome notification of proposed neighbourhood planning areas as well as consultation on draft plans. The regulations state that statutory bodies including Historic England should be consulted on draft plans where our interests are considered to be affected. This should be included in your amendment to paragraph 2.21. We have guidance on neighbourhood planning, which can be found at:	Noted.
37462	(Comment) Paragraph 1 - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning	

	Respondent: Natural England	
	Consultation on proposed amendments to the Statement of Community Involvement for Rochford District Council Thank you for your consultation on the above dated 19 July 2019 which was received by Natural England on 19 July 2019. Natural England is a non-departmental public body. Our statutory purpose is to ensure that the natural environment is conserved, enhanced, and managed for the benefit of present and future generations, thereby contributing to sustainable development. We are supportive of the principle of meaningful and early engagement of the general community, community organisations and statutory bodies in local planning matters, both in terms of shaping policy and participating in the process of determining planning applications. We regret we are unable to comment, in detail, on individual Statements of Community Involvement but information on the planning service we offer, including advice on how to consult us, can be found at: https://www.gov.uk/protected-species-and-sites-how-to-review-planning-proposals. We now ask that all planning consultations are sent electronically to the central hub for our planning and development advisory service at the following address: consultations@naturalengland.org.uk. This system enables us to deliver the most efficient and effective service to our customers.	Noted.
37461	(Comment) Paragraph 1 - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning	
	Respondent: Highways England	
	Thank you for your consultation dated 19 July 2019. The following consultation is unlikely to have a severe impact on the strategic road network. We therefore offer no comment in this case	Noted.
37460	(Comment) Paragraph 2 - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning	Comment noted. The District Council undertakes public consultation in accordance with the current adopted SCI and seeks to
	All development plans should be notified to those locally affected, and also listed in more general Local Development Plans, to ensure proper notice is provided. This will indicate the local and more	go beyond the minimum regulatory requirements wherever possible, particularly for plan making.
	general effects of development plans. Current plans are now badly managed as regards effects of building, and putting stress on infrastructure.	There are various methods through which residents may be notified of a

		planning application as set out in the draft SCI.
		Consultation with infrastructure and service providers is undertaken throughout the plan-making and planning application processes.
37458	(Object) Paragraph 1 - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning	
	The Neighbourhood plan states allocate land for development, including new homes and employment. In the case of the Hullbridge development thee is no indication of new jobs being generated. I would suggest (1) that no further land should be allocated to build on and (2) the current development of 500 houses should be restricted to 125/250 so as to determine the impact on traffic congestion and the environment - likewise the London Road / Rawreth Lane development should be reduced.	This is outside the remit of this consultation.
37457	(Comment) Paragraph 1 - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning	
	Respondent: Chelmsford City Council	
	The Council notes the new section referencing to Neighbourhood Plans and support offered in preparing new neighbourhood plans. This Council considers that proposed amendments are clear and comprehensive. Chelmsford City Council will continue to actively engage with Rochford District Council on each other's respective Local Plans.	Noted.
37456	(Comment) Paragraph 1 - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning	
	Respondent: Chelmsford City Council	
	The Council has no comments to make to the Data Protection statement.	Noted.
37455	(Comment) Paragraph 1 - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning	
	Respondent: Southend-on-Sea Borough Council	
		Noted.

	Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the above document.	
	The amendments on GDPR and Neighbourhood Planning are supported in principle. Southend Borough Council does not have any specific comments to make.	
37454	(Comment) Paragraph 1 - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning	
	Respondent: Southend-on-Sea Borough Council	
	Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the above document.	
	The amendments on GDPR and Neighbourhood Planning are supported in principle. Southend Borough Council does not have any specific comments to make.	Noted.
37453	(Comment) Paragraph 12, Modifications to or revocation of a neighbourhood plan or order - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning	
	the reason councils make decisions is unknown and usually fabricated. It suits the council to have new building hidden in Rochford because you want less contact with the public and air con and better parking etc etc etc Why not use the rayleigh police station?	This is outside the remit of this consultation.
37452	(Comment) Paragraph 12, Decision to make, or refuse to make, a neighbourhood plan or order - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning	
	"medium deemed appropriate" equals hidden from public.	Comment noted.
37451	(Comment) Paragraph 12, Community Referendum - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning IS THIS FOR REAL???? NEVER HAD A Referendum from council. If you mean buried	Comment noted. The District Council undertakes public consultation in accordance with the current adopted SCI and seeks to go beyond the minimum regulatory
	comment on councils proposal type of hidden activity that is not a referendum	requirements wherever possible, particularly for plan making.

37450	(Comment) Paragraph 12, Neighbourhood Forum Designation Consultation - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning	
	No Good saying council May use notificatons via notice boards library etc. People should KNOW FOR SURE where notices will be and not chase after council notices. Its a very OBSTRUCTIVE way of "communicating i.e GUESS WHERE WE PINNED THE NOTICE!!!	Comment noted. The District Council undertakes public consultation in accordance with the current adopted SCI and seeks to go beyond the minimum regulatory requirements wherever possible, particularly for plan making.
37449	(Comment) Paragraph 12, Neighbourhood Area Designation Consultation - Statement of Community Involvement Addendums: Data Protection and Neighbourhood Planning	
	consultation should take place BEFORE money is spentYou have spent SO MUCH on selling OUR assets to fund council building	This is outside the remit of this consultation.